
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        FEBRUARY 20, 2012 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / February 6, 1012 

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / February 13, 2012 

 

                                               

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

           Review minutes / February 13
th
  

1.) Ordinances:            
b.) Appropriate Funds: Other Personnel Cost: Building Maintenance / Ordinance 2012-12  

c.) Appropriation of Funds: Additional Audit / CPA Services / Ordinance 2012-13 

d.) Appropriation of Funds: Bonding: Deputy Finance Director / Ordinance 2012-14 

e.) Appropriate of Funds: BARC (Baldwin County Humane Society)contribution / Ordinance 2012-15 

f.) Appropriate Funds: U.S. 98 & Whispering Pines Road Intersection Improvements   (Turn Lanes &   

  Signalization) /  Ordinance 2012-16   

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a.) Bid Award: Oil & Lube / Martin Energy / Resolution 2012-07 

b.) Bid Award: U.S. 98& Whispering Pines Road Intersection Improvements (Turn Lanes & Signalization) 

  John G. Walton  Construction Company / Resolution 2012-08 

c.) Bid Award: Disaster Debris Removal / Gulf Equipment Corp (d/b/a Crowder Gulf) / Resolution 2012-09 

d.) Declare Certain Property Surplus / 2150 John Deere Tractor / (2) Wayne Gas Pumps / Resolution 2012-10 

 

 

3.) Motions: 

a.) To renew Annual Property Liability Insurance Policy with Robertson Insurance Agency, Inc., and lock   

  in the rates for three (3) years in order to receive a discount. 

 

4.) Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / January 2012 

 Sales & Use Tax Collection / December 2011 

 Lodging Tax Collections / December 2011 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake                  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware                   

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

          Review minutes / January 17
th
  

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette           

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway         

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette       

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

1



           

COUNCIL AGENDA                                         FEBRUARY 20, 2012                                  PAGE   2 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report   
           a.)  Parade Permit /Lupus Foundation / Fund Raiser / March 17, 2012 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 
a.)   Appoint Enoch Toler to the Board of Directors of the  

        Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of the City of Daphne . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-06 

 

b.)   Bid Award / Oil & Lube. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-07 

 

c.)    Bid Award / US 98 & Whispering Pines Intersection Improvements / 

        (Turn Lanes & Signalization). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-08 

 

d.)  Bid Award / Disaster Debris Removal & Disposal Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-09 

 

h.)  Declare Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Disposal. . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-10 

 

i.)   Safe Route to Schools Grant. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-11 

 

j.)   Authorize the Mayor to Execute A Warrant Purchase Agreement 

       Between the City & Gardnyr Michael Capital with Respect the Series  

       2012 Warrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-12 

 

k.)   AL Coastal Area Management Program 306A Public Access Grant. . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-13 

 

l.) AL Coastal Planning Projects Grant. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-14 

 

  

                    

  ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

  READ 

a.)   Amend Personnel Handbook / Transitional Duty. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-01 

 

b.)   Establish Protocol for the Appropriation of Funding for  

       Outside Agencies  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-06 

 

c.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-07 

 

d.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-08 

 

e.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-09 

 

f.)    Amend Ordinance 2008-17 / Mayor Salary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-10 

 
2



COUNCIL AGENDA                                         FEBRUARY 20, 2012                                  PAGE   3 

 

         1
ST

 READ 

g.)    Consenting to the Lease of Certain Property by the  

         Utilities Board of the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./ Ordinance 2012-11 

 

h.)    Other Personnel Cost: Building Maintenance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-12 

 

k.)   Appropriation of Funds: Additional Audit/CPA Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-13 

 

l.)    Appropriation of Funds: Bonding / Deputy Finance Director. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-14 

 

m.)  Appropriation of Funds: Community Contribution BARC /  

        (Baldwin County Humane Society). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-15 

 

n.)   Appropriation of Funds: US 98 & Whispering Pines Road Intersection 

        Improvements (Turn Lanes & Signalization). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-16 

 

o.)    Mandatory Sewer Hookup within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-17 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

4



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

5



FEBRUARY 6, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilman Lake. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire 

Chief; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic 

Center Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Ashley Campbell, 

Environmental Programs Manager; Officer Houston Sanders, Police Department; Scott Hutchinson, City 

Engineer; Willie Robison, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Selena Vaughn, 

Beautification Committee; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; 

 

Absent: Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the January 17, 2012 Council meeting minutes.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese, Barnette                             ABSTAIN    Scott, Boulware, Palumbo 

 

                                    NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Arbor Day / February 25, 2012 

 

Councilwoman Conaway read and presented the proclamation to Mrs. Dorothy Morrison, chairman of 

the Beautification Committee. 

 

Mrs. Morrison invited everyone to the tree giveaway at the Civic Center Complex on February 25
th

 

from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Adam McDonald / Eagle Scout Project 

 

Mr. McDonald  presented the council his proposed project to build benches for Village Point Park 

Preserve and for the beach. 

 

 

6



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve Mr. McDonald’s moving forward with the Eagle 

Scout bench project for Village Point Park Preserve.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

PRESENTATION:  Drew Williams / Update on Completed Eagle Scout Project 

 

Mr. Williams thanked the council for allowing him to do his project.  He cleared out 30 feet by the 

Daphne Museum on Dryer Avenue.  He only had to schedule two (2) work days, totaling 152 hours 

of service work, and that is around 15 people including Councilman Boulware. He said that those 

hours taught him a lot about hard work, and really what they can accomplish as a team which 

scouting is all about.  He handed out pictures to the council. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Dr. Barry Booth / Update on the Honor Flight Program 

 

Dr. Booth thanked council for their support of the program.  They are entering their last year for the 

program.  Honor Flight has had six (6) very successful flights.  The seventh flight will be May 9
th

.  To 

date the City of Daphne has helped fly 562 veterans to Washington, and 41 of those are from the City 

of Daphne.  He thanked council for the support the city has given both emotionally and financially.  

He urged each one to be at the airport to welcome those heroes home on the evening of May 9
th

.  The 

last flight will probably take place on September 19
th

, and he still gets periodic applications from 

veterans to go, and the last one he received this morning was from Alex Trione.  One other item he 

wanted to update council that the Alabama State Veterans Cemetery in Spanish Fort has been very 

successful, and is progressing. He thanked council for their support.  He thanked council for 

considering a contribution to the Alabama Memorial Battleship Park.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to suspend the rules to consider a motion to authorize the 

contribution of the remainder of Councilman Boulware and Councilman Scott’s travel budget 

to the Honor Flight Program.   Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye     Boulware  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Reese   Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

7



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to authorize the contribution of the remainder of 

Councilman Boulware and Councilman Scott’s travel budget to the Honor Flight Program.  

Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED  

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be February 13
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

Councilman Palumbo reported on an emergency concern which is the animal cruelty case in 

Summerdale saying that BARC is overwhelmed with taking care of these animals.  There were 109 

animals that survived the neglect and abuse, and they are distributed among several vets.  Some are in 

foster homes until they can be adopted out.  He said this is very expensive, and asked council to consider 

a motion to contribute $2,500 to BARC. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to suspend the rules to consider a motion to contribute $2,500 

to BARC to address their emergency with the care of the animals that were abused.    Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to contribute $2,500 to BARC to address their emergency with 

the care of the animals that were abused.    Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

No report.  There was not a meeting in February. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the January 11
th

  meeting are in the packet. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

The minutes for the January 11
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

A chart of notice of action taken at the last Public Works meeting is in the packet as well as the 

January 6
th

 Beautification minutes. 

 

8



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report.    

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The minutes for the January 23
rd

 meeting are in the packet. The next meeting will be February 27
th

. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 
The minutes for the January 23

rd
 meeting are in the packet.  There will be a special called meeting 

February 7
th

 at 6:00 p.m. to discuss a call center that wants to locate in Daphne. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

The November 3, 2011, December 1, 2011 and January 6, 2012 minutes are in the packet.  Councilman 

Lake reported the stats that were in the November minutes. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

The minutes for the December 15
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to set a Public Hearing date for March 5, 2012 to consider 

revisions to the Zoning map and annexation of Woodrow Lane Right-of-Way.  Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Council President Barnette stated that the Site Review meeting will be February 15
th

, and the regular 

Planning Commission meeting will be February 23
rd

. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The January 4
th

 minutes are in the packet which was the meeting for December 2011. 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

 a.)  Parade Permit / S.E.E.D.S. 8
th

 Annual Classic Rock 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / March 3, 2012 

b.)  Parade Permit / Prodisee Pantry / Annual 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / October 27, 2012 

c.)  Parade Permit / Arthritis Foundation Jingle Bell Run / 5K & 1 Mile / December 1, 2012 
 

 

 

 

 

 

9



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to approve the Parade Permits for S.E.E.D.S. 8
th

 Annual 

Classic Rock 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / March 3, 2012 / Prodisee Pantry / Annual 5K & 1 Mile Fun 

Run / October 27, 2012 / Arthritis Foundation Jingle Bell Run / 5K & 1 Mile / December 1, 2012.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

d.)  ABC License / Champys Famous Fried Chicken / 020 Restaurant Retail Liquor 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to approve the ABC License for Champys Famous Fried 

Chicken / 020 Restaurant Retail Liquor. Seconded by Councilman Lake.\ 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

e.)  MOTION:  Authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Syntergy, LLC / Energy 

Plan  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with 

Syntergy, LLC / Energy Plan.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

No report.   

 

C. Department Head Comments: 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that spring registration continues for girl’s softball, 

Dixie Youth Baseball and for the first time Spring soccer.  On February 17
th

 and 18
th

 they will host the 

Southern Shootout Soccer Tournament at Trione Sports Complex with 48 teams, 30 from outside the 

area with 57 matches.  

 

James White – Fire Chief -  reported that they hosted the first Fire College at the facility on Stanton 

Road, and extended an invitation to come out and look at the facility. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director - reported that the Apollo’s Mystic Ladies will roll on 

Friday, February 10
th

 at 6:45 p.m., the Mystic Order of Persephone will roll on Friday, February 17
th

 at 

6:45 p.m. and the Shadow Barons rolls Saturday, February 18
th

 at 6:45 p.m. He mentioned important 

reminders that Whispering Pines and Main Street (Santa Rosa to Whispering Pines) will shut down 

around 4:30 p.m. for parade lineup.  The parade route will be closed in stages starting around 5:30 

p.m.  Sunday the 19
th

 is the Loyal Order of the Fire Truck parade rolling at 1:59 p.m. through Olde 

Towne Daphne.  Main Street will experience rolling closures when the parade is on Main Street.   
10



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

Citizens need to plan their evening and weekend commutes accordingly, because there will be traffic 

delays.  The Arbor Day tree giveaway will be Saturday, February 25
th

 at 9:00 a.m. until the trees are 

gone at the Civic Center Concourse. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Civic Center is getting ready for Mardi 

Gras, and citizens can view all events on the Civic Center website. 

 

Christine Ciancetta – Deputy Finance Director – reported that she is working on the RFP for the 

Warrant refinancing, she has had several meetings with the auditors, and has had meetings with banks 

for use of credit cards, and she has a scheduled meeting with Robbie Robertson regarding insurance 

renewal. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – reported that the new website was up and running, and she 

mentioned the future speakers that will be at the Library. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – reported that the will be a blood drive at city hall on 

February 14
th

.  

 

Adrienne Jones – Planning Director – reported that they are working on the Low Impact 

Development Ordinance.  Mr. Trey Jinright, with Jade Consulting, and Chad Watkins spoke regarding 

the ordinance.  Mrs. Jones also reported that Fresh Market is coming to the Jubilee Square Shopping 

Center. 

 

Mayor Yelding stated that it would be worthwhile to see a power point on the Low Impact 

Development Ordinance at the work session in March. 

 

David Cohen – City Clerk -  reported that he wants to apply for two (2) grants 1) Coastal Area 306A 

Public Access grant and 2) Coastal Planning Projects grant which are $50,000 each, and the deadline 

to apply is March 1
st
.  He is working on the Safe Routes to School Sidewalk grant now.  He will be 

discussing it with Richard Johnson tomorrow.   

 

Council President Barnette asked Mr. Cohen to put the information together for the work session along 

with what has been applied for in the past and send it to council. 

 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Captain Max Haynes – 110 Dewitt Circle – spoke regarding a lot of burglaries on Stanton Road. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – spoke regarding the loss of Steve Green a Mobile police 

officer killed in the line of duty. 

 

Mr. Bob Segalla – 8100 Palmetto Court – spoke in opposition to the proposed COLA raise for the 

new council saying that is was wrong minded. 

 

11



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)  Support for House Resolution 367 & Senate Bill 301 / 

      to Recognize the Month of October Each Year as  

      Italian and Italian American Heritage Month. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-04 

 

b.)  Revisions to City Street Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-05 

 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked that Resolution 2012-04 be read. 

 

Councilman Scott read Resolution 2012-04 for the record. 

 

                          RESOLUTION NO. 2012-04 

 

City of Daphne Support for House Resolution 367 and Senate Bill 301 

to Recognize the Month of October Each Year as Italian and Italian American Heritage Month 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne Support for House Resolution 367 to recognize the month of 

October Each Year as Italian and Italian American Heritage Month; and 

 

WHEREAS, Italian immigrants were instrumental in founding the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, descendants of these original families have flourished and prospered in the city; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, many Italian Americans have moved to our rapidly growing community and 

helped preserve the cultural traditions of the heritage; and 

 

WHEREAS, Italian Americans have become civic leaders and exemplary citizens of the City 

of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Italian American contributions have enriched the lives of citizens of Daphne. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne urges U.S. Representative 

Jo Bonner to co-sponsor and support House Resolution 367 and U.S. Senators Jeff Sessions and 

Richard Shelby to co-sponsor and support companion Senate Bill 301 which recognizes the month of 

October as Italian and Italian American Heritage Month. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THE ____  DAY OF ______, 2012. 
 

 

 

12



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-04.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR              NAY   NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-05.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED     

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2012-05.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program: 

       / 140 Lakeview Loop. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-02 

            

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: City Hall HVAC / Fire Alarm Repair . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-04 

 

c.)  Community Contributions: USS Alabama Battleship Memorial Park  . . ./Ordinance 2012-05 

 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 

d.)   Amend Personnel Handbook / Transitional Duty. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-01 

 

e.)   Establish Protocol for the Appropriation of Funding for  

       Outside Agencies  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-06 

 

f.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-07 

 

g.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-08 

 

h.)   Amend Ordinance 2008-16 / Council Salary / Option C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-09 

 

i.)    Amend Ordinance 2008-17 / Mayor Salary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-10 

 

 

13



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2012-02, 2012-04 and 2012-

05.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-02.  Seconded by Councilman Derek. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                                                        

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-04.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2012-05.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Ordinances 2012-01, 2012-06, 2012-07, 2012-08, 2012-09 AND 2012-10 were made 1
st
 

Read. 
 

Council President Barnette requested Ordinances 2012-07, 2012-08, 2012-09 and 2012-10be put on the 

work session agenda. 

 
 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding commended Mr. Palumbo’s idea for BARC.  He is glad that he came to council with this, 

and that council supported his idea.  He is glad that Daphne has taken the lead in this situation. 

 

Councilman Lake thanked council for their support of the USS Alabama.  The contribution will go toward a 

training center to start an educational program. 

 

Councilman Scott said that the council and mayor change of pay will be discussed at the work session 

because of the deadline.  He is not in favor of an increase for council, but he is in favor of the decrease in 

the mayor’s salary. 

 

Councilman Boulware said that vets are worthy of respect, and the Honor Flight is something that they 

should do.  He thinks that this is a wise use of taxpayer’s money. He thanked council for their support. 

 

 

 

14



FEBRUARY 6, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

 

Council President Barnette thanked Mr. Palumbo for his leadership in the BARC campaign, and that he has 

been a leader in animal causes.  She hopes other cities will follow suit.  She echoed Mr. Robison’s 

comments on the death of the Mobile police officer.  She encouraged citizens to come out for the Mardi 

Gras parades, and to keep safe. 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                         

                             
________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

15



FEBRUARY 13, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; 

Ron Scott; Derek Boulware 

 

ABSENT: August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Christine Ciancetta, 

Deputy Finance Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Erick Bussey, Attorney. 

 

Absent: Mayor Yelding. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

1. INSURANCE RENEWAL INFORMATION / ROBBIE ROBETSON 

Mr. Robbie Robertson explained that the city is insured for three year periods, and the city is in the 

third year.  The city receives a $3,000 discount, but if the city chooses to opt out they will loose the 

discount, and he does not recommend opting out. 

 

Council asked questions of Mr. Robertson and Ms. Ciancetta. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that they started this process because the current carrier is denying 

too many cases, and the council wanted to see what other coverage was out there. 

 

Mr. Robertson said since this has come out he is working with Mr. Ross to resolve the issue. He has 

spoken with his underwriter about this issue, and she is going to speak with her supervisor in order 

to come to a resolution of the problem. 

 

2. REFINANCING WARRANTS RESOLUTION 

Ms. Ciancetta reported on the process she used to establish the RFP.  She mentioned that Mr. Hunt 

did not have any input in the process, and that Mr. Hunt was treated as any other company 

submitting a response to the RFP.  She received responses from three (3) companies two (2) banks 

and Gardnyr Michael.  Ms. Ciancetta related each company’s proposal. (Chart spread out upon these 

minutes). 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she, the Mayor and Mr. Ross met with the financial advisor 

for Mobile County, and he agreed to review the RFP and the responses. He e-mailed a summary, and 

suggested a more detailed analysis.  She asked Mr. Ross and Ms. Ciancetta to check with Mr. Dotts 

to see if he will assist the city further so that they can have a third party to review the figures that 

Ms. Ciancetta presented in order to give council confidence that they are going in the right direction. 

 

Mr. Ross said he will try to get with Mr. Dotts this week so that it can be on the agenda next 

Monday. 

 

 

 

 

16



FEBRUARY 13, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

3. MANDATORY SEWER CONNECTION ORINANCE 

Council President Barnette wanted to make sure council wanted to do away with waivers, because 

there are truly people that cannot afford to hook up to the sewer lines.  She thinks there should be a 

hardship clause in the ordinance.  

 

Councilman Reese said this ordinance settles who does the waiving by taking it out of the ordinance 

completely. 

 

Mr. Cohen stated the ordinance has to do with potential annexations of future homes outside the City 

of Daphne.  Some of the language brought up in the committee meeting was in regard to public 

utilities and private utilities.  Right now Baldwin Sewer has several lines in the first and second 

phases of Canterbury that if they adopted this ordinance it would require that they hookup to a 

private sewer company, and he suggested that the verbiage be strictly for public utilities. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that he is not sure they can do that, and if that is the position the council wants to 

take he will do some research to see if it is legal.  If sewer is available with public or private and it 

meets the public health standards he thinks that is where you have to go.  Before council goes that 

way he wants to be sure that it is right so that they do not get into something that they did not 

bargain for. 

 

Council President Barnette asked Mr. Ross to check Mr. Cohen’s statement. 

 

Consensus of council was to have the ordinance on next Monday’s council meeting agenda. 

 

 
 

4. ALABAMA COASTAL AREA MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 306A PUBLIC ACCESS  

GRANT & COASTAL PLANNING PROJECTS / DAVID COHEN 
It is Mr. Cohen’s recommendation that the city apply for the Coastal Access grant to do the bridge from Gator 

Alley to the Hampton Inn, and be able to cross and connect the Gator Alley trail to the hotels and restaurants 

on the other side of US Highway 98.  All permits have been acquired except for the US Fish and Wildlife 

which they are in the process of getting.  The project is about $140,000 to $150,000, and the grant would only 

pay for $50,000, but this project would qualify for use of lodging tax funds.  

 

Mr. Johnson said he did not think the cost would be that high. They are waiting for Fish and Wildlife to give 

their ok before they can go out for bid.   

 

Mr. Cohen said that the cost would be more like $70,000. 

 

Consensus of council was to put it on the agenda for approval at next Monday’s council meeting. 

 

Mr. Cohen said that he will prepare a resolution for approval. 

 

Mr. Cohen stated that the Coastal Planning grant could be used for the proposed amphitheater behind the 

Thomas Hospital building that the Village Point Foundation has been working on for some time.  Mr. Cohen 

said he believes this grant is for $50,000 also.   

17



FEBRUARY 13, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

Consensus of council was to put this on the agenda for approval for next Monday’s council meeting. 

 

Mr. Cohen said that he would prepare another resolution for this project. 

 

Mr. Cohen also mentioned that he would like to put the Safe Routes to Schools grant on the agenda, and do 

them all at the same time.  The sidewalk would be on the west side of the road from the Middle School going 

north taking in French Settlement, Sehoy and terminate at Tiawassee with a crosswalk over to Sehoy. 

Mr. Cohen stated that he will prepare the three (3) resolutions for the agenda next Monday. 

 

5. COUNCIL & MAYOR SALARY ORDINANCES 

Mrs. Hinman stated that council is considered part-time, and if council receives insurance benefits then they 

would have to cover all part-time employees.  It is all or nothing. 

 

Councilman Scott stated that he is not in favor of the increases for the council.  They received raises four (4) 

years ago, and he feels that is sufficient since they are public officials.  He is fine with reducing the Mayor’s 

car allowance and reimbursing him for mileage or he could use the city car for traveling. 

 

Mr. Lyles, the city’s Blue Cross/Blue Shield representative, stated that there are two (2) requirements to be 

covered 1) must be a W-2 employee and 2) work at least 32 hours.  He said it used to be 30 hours, but 

somewhere down the line it was changed to 32 hours. 

 

Council asked questions of Mr. Lyles.   

 

Councilman Lake wanted to know where it says that council is considered part-time. 

 

Council President Barnette asked Mrs. Hinman and Mr. Ross to find out the answer to Mr. Lakes question. 

 

 

6.  DISCUSS WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

Council did not have any other items to discuss. 

 

 

7.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:19 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

18



19



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

20



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

February 13, 2012 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:02 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware,  Councilwoman Tommie 
Conaway, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, and Accountant 
Donna Page. 
 
Councilman Ron Scott arrived at 4:27 pm. Finance Director Kim Briley was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Bailey Yelding, Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works 
Director Richard Johnson, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Police Captain Danny Bell, Recreation 
Director David McKelroy, Library Director Tonja Young, Revenue Officer Heather Gywnn, Building Maintenance 
Supervisor Frank Barnett, and Human Resources Payroll/Benefits Coordinator Sherree Hilburn. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Mr. Robbie Robertson with Robertson Insurance Agency presented comparisons from seven insurance 
companies for the City’s insurance coverage.  The renewal recommendations are as follows: 

 EMC – Property - $143,564 
 EMC – Automobile - $126,634 
 EMC – Equipment -   $25,670 
 EMC – Boardwalks -   $11,795 
 AMIC – Liability -  $136,106 annually for a three year policy 
 

Mr. Robertson noted that the pricing for the liability coverage includes a $3,000 per year discount if the policy is 
renewed for three years.  Mr. Boulware expressed concern that punitive damages are not covered under AMIC’s 
policy, but Mr. Robertson stated that punitive damages are covered.  He noted this is a misunderstanding that 
he has discussed with the City attorney.   
 
Mr. Robertson discussed that some of the companies such as CRC actually consist of several companies, but 
declined to quote because they could not compete with the limits requested.  Other companies would not quote 
due to the City’s location. 
 
Mr. Boulware noted that the City’s insurance renewal is on the agenda for the work session following this 
Committee meeting and will be discussed in more detail with the full Council then. 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman presented the Human Resources activity update. Replacement positions filled in January 
include Police Officer (2), Public Service Worker (2), Fire Medic, Revenue Acct. Tech, and PT Firefighter.  Oral 
Interviews are scheduled for Corporal/Warrant Police Officer. 
  
The Safety Committee reported that the Solid Waste department is getting back supports for all employees.  
Public Works employees received sprains/strains training last month and this month the employees in Street 
department will receive training on flagging/trenching.  The Grounds crew will receive certification in landscape 
professional, which includes safety with chemicals.  The next Safety Committee meeting will be February 29, 
2012, at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Ms. Hinman reported on the following HR department projects:  
 Finalizing Salary Survey with Archer Company 21



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

 Auditing Personnel Files 
 W-2’s Completed and Mailed 
 Processing 7 New Employees 
 
Mr. Will Liles with Blue Cross Blue Shield discussed the City’s current contract with them which is an 
underwritten policy where the City pays a set fee and BCBS pays the claims.  The City currently has between 
$700,000 and $800,000 in reserves with BCBS, which has been the main factor in there being no rate increase 
for the last four years.  
 
Mr. Liles noted that if the City goes to a self-funded policy, they would lose the reserve balance. The City would 
then be liable for its claims directly, thereby possibly creating savings for the City or costing the City more, 
depending on total amounts of claims. 
 
Mr. Liles stated that as long as the City has an underwritten policy, only employees that work a minimum of 30 
hours per week are eligible for coverage.  Discussion continued that the City has established in the handbook 
that 32 hours per week or greater is what is required to be considered fulltime.  The only option for the City to 
offer coverage to employees working less than 32 hours would be to go to a self-funded policy.  This would then 
open coverage up to all employees who receive W-2s, no matter their total hours. 
   
 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  January 31, 2012 

 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $20,925,561.84 was presented.  Ms. Henson noted that the Capital Reserve 
balance has decreased significantly due to ongoing road projects.  Ms. Henson asked Mr. Richard Johnson to 
get with her on the outstanding road projects to assist in monitoring the available balance from this fund. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of January 31, 2012, in the 
amount of $20,925,561.84.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: December 31, 2011 
 
Ms. Henson reviewed the Sales Tax reports: 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for December 2011    -   $1,168,627 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for December 2011    -   $1,144,856             
Over Budget (for December)                                    -    $     23,771 

 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $79,402  
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, December 2011  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $42,279 collected for December, 2011 
 
4.  Report: New Business Licenses – January 2012 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in January was presented.   
 
5.  Bills Paid Reports – January 2012 
 
The January Bills Paid Report for FY 2011 was included in Packet #2 and the January Bills Paid Report for FY 
2012 was included in Packet #2-A.  
 
 
 
 

22



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

B.  Appropriation Request  
 
General Fund - 
 

 Other Personnel Cost: Building Maintenance - $43,791 (update budget-costs inadvertently omitted) 
 
Ms. Henson noted that “Other Personnel” costs for Building Maintenance were inadvertently left out of the FY 12 
budget.  Ms. Henson noted that these cost were submitted at the department level but not rolled/entered to the 
next level.  These are annual costs for each department consisting of medical/dental insurance, disability and 
life insurance, SUI, and worker’s compensation.    
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $43,791 
for FY 12 “Other Personnel” costs (medical/dental insurance, disability and life 
insurance, SUI, and worker’s compensation) for Building Maintenance. Seconded by 
Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Additional Audit/CPA Services - $4,000 
 
It was discussed that additional services from a Certified Public Accountant may be required to complete the 
City’s Financial Reports/Statements for preparation of the FY 2011 year end audit.  Ms. Henson noted that the 
auditors have already started preliminary work for Fiscal Year 2011 and are anticipated to come onsite in late 
March and if additional services are needed at that time the monies need to go ahead and be appropriated.  Ms. 
Ciancetta noted she would close the year, complete the GAAP statements, and work with the auditors to 
complete the yearend financial statements/reports. It was discussed that the City’s auditors have agreed to 
assist with these preparations if needed.    
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$4,000 for additional services from the City’s current auditors in preparation of the FY 
2011 year end audit.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Bonding: Finance Deputy Director - $1,750 
 
Mayor Yelding recommended Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director, be bonded as she is assuming 
additional responsibilities and duties in the absence of the Finance Director. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $1,750 
for bonding the Deputy Finance Director.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Community Contribution: BARC - $2,500 
The community contribution to BARC was discussed at the last Council meeting.  Ms. Henson noted she had completed an 
Ordinance and prepared an agreement for the contribution. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $2,500 to 
BARC (The Baldwin County Humane Society) and suspend the rules to adopt on the 
first read.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Update: Personnel Request: Information Systems Technician - $26,306 (remainder of FY12) 
 
Ms. Hinman presented new information from Archer on the request for an Information Technology Coordinator 
position. Ms. Hinman presented an approved job description and job grade.  Ms. Henson reviewed outside 
computer labor expenses presented for the last four years and the City’s computer and software program 
inventory count.  Ms. Henson noted that outside computer services would still be required because one person 
cannot cover all the City’s needs but the total cost should decrease because this position would cover 
emergency computer needs, day to day repairs and operations.  Ms. Henson noted that the City needs to move 

23



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

forward with the installation of Fiber/Wireless upgrades and get off the DSL lines the City is currently using and 
noted that this position is needed to coordinate these installations.  Ms. Henson noted the City needs a point 
person to ensure that all departments work together and discussed the restructuring of IP addresses that will be 
needed  throughout City department’s if/when the City converts to Voice over IP phone services. Several other 
benefits to having an on-site IT person were discussed by department heads, such as having one person to 
coordinate the whole City computer/networking needs, downtime should be minimized over waiting on outside 
help, and this position would be the liaison to work with outside companies on all issues involving information 
technology.  
 

 Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance amending the Job 
Classification Schedule to add an Information Technology Coordinator position at 
Grade 22, and adopt an ordinance appropriating $26,306 to fund the position for the 
remainder of FY12.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Bid: 2012-C-U.S. 98 & WHISPERING PINES ROAD - $677,132 + Eng - $48,000 = $725,132 
 
The Capital road improvement project for the intersection of Whispering Pines Road and US Hwy 98 additional 
turn lanes and signalization upgrade was discussed.  Mr. Johnson discussed that HMR Engineers, ALDOT, and 
staff all recommend the low bid of $677,132.11 from John G Walton Construction Company be accepted.  He 
noted that ALDOT will reimburse the City one-half of the construction costs ($338,566.06). The City will have to 
pay the total amount and then be reimbursed one-half from ALDOT.  The City will also be responsible for 
$48,000 in engineering costs. 
  

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $785,132 
for the Capital Road Improvement Project – Project 2012-A – Intersection of 
Whispering Pines Road and US Hwy 98 ($677,132 construction costs, $60,000 
signalization, and $48,000 engineering costs), one-half of construction costs for U.S. 
98 & Whispering Pines Intersection ($322,368.08) to be reimbursed to the City by 
ALDOT; 
and 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2012-C-US 
98 & WHISPERING PINES ROAD in the amount of $677,132 to John G. Walton 
Construction Co.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Bid: 2012-D-ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT - $33,645 
 
Nineteen bid invitations were sent out, with six sealed bids received, three being no bids.  Mr. Johnson noted 
that the low bidder also bid $33,645 for a demo unit, with very little use.  Mr. Johnson stated purchasing the 
demo unit would save the City $3,000 over the same model new.  He noted an asphalt hotbox is very much 
needed for road repair, especially small jobs when hot mix can be ready when needed and asphalt won’t be 
wasted by mixing it and not being able to keep what is not used immediately. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$33,645 for an Asphalt Hotbox Reclaimer Trailer Unit and adopt a resolution awarding 
bid 2012-D-ASPHALT HOTBOX RECLAIMER TRAILER UNIT in the amount of $33,645 to 
Truck Equipment Sales.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Bid: 2012-E-PW/TRUCK: 8-10 YARD DUMP TRUCK - $85,998 
 
Nineteen bid invitations were sent out, with six sealed bids received; staff recommends the low bid from Empire 
Truck LLC for a 2013 M2 Freightliner be accepted. 
 

24



Finance Minutes.doc  5  

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $85,998 
for 8-10 Yard Dump Truck, and adopt a resolution awarding bid 2012-E-PW TRUCK: 8-
10 YARD DUMP TRUCK in the amount of $85,998 to Empire Truck, LLC. Seconded by 
Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
 
 

 Bid: 2012-F-PW/ROLLER COMPACTOR – TOW BEHIND - $20,030 
 
Seventeen bid invitations were sent out with three sealed bids received, two being no bids.  Staff recommends 
the bid from Thompson Caterpillar be accepted. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$20,030 for Roller Compactor – tow behind, and adopt a resolution awarding bid 2012-
F-PW/ROLLER COMPACTOR-TOW BEHIND in the amount of $20,030 to Thompson 
Tractor Co. for a Mauldin 1450 Roller Compactor. Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion 
carried. 
 
 

 State Bid: Mechanical Service Truck w/Crane - $57,766 
 
It was noted that a F550 Supercab with 11 ft Knapheide Crane Body and Venturo ET122KX Crane can be 
purchased from the State Bid list for $57,766. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$57,766 for a Mechanical Service Truck w/Crane to be purchased from the State bid 
contract. Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 State Bid: Two (2) Patrol: Chevrolet Tahoe’s - $94,205 
 State Bid: Two (2) Detective: Chevrolet Tahoe’s - $64,378 

 
Captain Danny Bell noted that these are replacement vehicle requests.  He noted that the Police Department 
would like to be on a seven year vehicle replacement schedule, but due to the poor economy and budget 
constraints they are currently on a nine to ten year replacement schedule.  He noted these are the same base 
vehicles, but need to be equipped differently depending on their use. Mr. Scott asked that information be 
presented to the full Council on the total number of PD vehicles, including their age, etc.  
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $158,583 
for two (2) Chevrolet Tahoe’s for Patrol ($94,205) and two (2) Chevrolet Tahoe’s for 
Detective ($64,378) to be purchased from the State bid contract.  Seconded by Ms. 
Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 

 FY2012 Capital Budget Requests 
The Mayor discussed that other Capital requests will continue to be evaluated and noted he wanted to continue 
to prioritize these items by department.  The Mayor noted that he had asked Public Works and Police to 
prioritize their equipment request before they went out to bid.  Ms. Henson noted the items bid that are being 
discussed were requested to go out to bid by Council at the December 5, 2011 Council meeting.  Ms. Young 
discussed the Library’s need to restructure several positions but the greatest need was to re-class a Library 
Tech position to an IT Librarian to better reflect the Libraries technology needs.  Ms. Young noted the Library 
has three servers and keeping the Library programs running, teaching computer classes, and managing the 
public internet access is a full time position.   
 

 
 
 

25



Finance Minutes.doc  6  

C.  Bids  
1.  2012-B-OIL & LUBE (Annual Bid) 
 

Thirteen bid invitations were sent out, with four sealed bids received.  Staff recommends the low bid from Martin 
Energy Services, LLC be accepted. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2012-B-OIL 
& LUBE (annual bid) to Martin Energy Services LLC for unit prices as bid.  Seconded 
by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 
2.  2012-G-DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL (Annual Bid) 
 
Ten sealed bids were received, with staff recommending the bid from Crowder Gulf be accepted.  Mr. Johnson 
explained that they have reviewed the bids for completeness and fulfillment of the bid requirements per FEMA 
guidelines.  The bidder’s prior experience and equipment capabilities, as well as overall pricing of debris 
removal, processing and disposal were considered.  Mr. Johnson discussed that there is information that is 
required from the bidders and each bid is checked for that information.  He noted that per FEMA guidelines, the 
City must have a contract in place prior to any disaster occurring.  As long as FEMA guidelines are met, FEMA 
will reimburse the City 80% to 100% of our costs in disaster recovery.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2012-G-
DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL (annual bid) to Crowder Gulf as bid.  Seconded by Ms. 
Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 

D.  Request to go out to Bid:  Daphne Sports Complex: Phase I 
 
Mr. Johnson discussed the Daphne Sports Complex, Phase 1.  He noted that HMR Engineers prepared a 
drawing in 2008 and has submitted a turn-key cost estimate of $1,029,844.  The Parks and Recreation Board 
would like approval for the City to solicit bids for the project. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council allow staff to bid the Daphne Sports 
Complex: Phase I.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 

 
E.  Declare City Property Surplus: 
 
The following equipment was presented for surplus: 
 
Dept   Tag/Veh#      Description          Vin# / Serial #                     
Parks   45  2150 John Deere Tractor L02150G537223 
Mechanical    Two (2) Wayne Gas Pumps 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such property. Seconded by 
Ms. Conaway  Motion carried. 
 

V. Old Business 
Mr. Boulware stated that he would want to know a number on our reserve balance at the end of FY 2011 so that 
Council could move forward with Capital Projects requests.  Ms. Ciancetta noted that GAAP must be closed 
first, which is a long process.  She stated that the last accounts payables and accruals have just been 
completed, so she is beginning the close out process. Mr. Scott discussed borrowing the $3 million at today’s 
low rates to use for road projects, but agreed that he would like to know the reserve balance, which should be 
used for equipment.   
 

VI. ADJOURN   
The meeting was adjourned at 5:48 p.m. 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on January 17, 2012  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The January meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:10 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilwoman Cathy 

Barnette, Councilman John Lake, Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra 

Cushway-PW Administrative Assistant, Jaye Robertson-HMR, Steve Commander – 

Volkert, Randy Davis – Volkert, Jimmy Mason McCrory & Williams, Daryl Russell – 

McCrory & Williams, Carah Hall, McCrory & Williams 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – December reports reviewed.   

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – December YTD reports reviewed.    

C. Public Participation – Jimmy Mason with McCrory Williams of 30 years.  Just wanted to sit 

in and observe Public Works Committee Meeting.  He introduced several of his staff members 

that were present as well. 

D. Public Participation – Randy Davis and Steven Commander with Volkert were present to 

report on the Hwy 98/CR64 project.  Interruptions have been minimal.  Left turning lane will 

be closed for two days.  Will be back open on Friday. 

E. Correspondence – None submitted 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – December 19 2011  Councilman Lake made a motion to accept the minutes; 

motion seconded by Councilwoman Barnette. 

B. Mosquito Reports – None Submitted (not spraying season) 

C. Street Sweeper Reports – December reports reviewed.  Councilman Lake questioned why 

Park City (Pine Hill and side streets) were still not being swept.  Richard Johnson to follow-up 

with Street Supervisor to ensure that area is added to sweeping schedule. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Sidewalk on south side of CR64 from Target to Essex.  New to acquire. 

B. Wilson Avenue to Watts – Level grade.  No conflicts.  Need to obtain easements from five (5) 

residents. 

C. Creekside – North side of Whispering Pines Roadm Creekwood crossing to Stratford Glen 

would require access to Mr. Reese’s property.  No action at this time.  Will revisit down the 

road.  Need to tie existing sidewalks together.  Councilman Lake said that we need to pay 

more attention to Safer Access to School grant and get sidewalks to all of the schools.  

Councilwoman Barnette asked whether this would fall under the grant.  Richard stated that we 

need to tighten up the numbers and get more citizens involved in getting the easements.  

Councilman Lake would like to see all of the sidewalks marked every 1/10th of a mile for 

walkers/runners to be able to track their distance.  Councilwoman Barnette stated that this 

would be a great project for the Trailblazers or an Eagle Scout project. Richard will provide 

more information at next month’s meeting.  

D. Environmental Advisory Board – Next meeting will be held on Monday – January 23, 2012. 

 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Motion for Right of Way – Richard Johnson deferred discussion of this topic.  Will be 

discussed at a future meeting. 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 115



A. Monthly Equipment Use Report – Compared December 2010 to December 2011.  

Significant increase.  Included in packet is a month to month and year to year comparison.  

Councilman Lake questioned whether we have considered proposing a recycling competition 

with neighboring municipalities.  Richard stated that Tracey Miller, Solid Waste Coordinator 

has been very active with visiting POA’s and providing them information.  She is working 

with Councilwoman Barnette on Grant.  She stated that we found out that we were way too 

low on our numbers last year.  Preparing to submit this year’s grant application.  We are much 

clearer on our recycling message in the community this year. 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – December 12 2011. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – January 6, 2012.  Minutes reviewed 

B. Update – One of the DBC’s projects is a landscape upgrade of the triangle in front of KFC.  

The community board would need to be moved.  Richard will check with Code Enforcement 

and other ordinances (Land Use) to determine whether community board can be relocated and 

what the parameters are that would have to be met.  Will bring information to next meeting, 

 

IX. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. NRCS Update – None 

B. HMR Update – Lake Forest improvements:  ready for binder early next week.  Lawson and 

Ridgewood complete.  Raising manhole lids. Another 45-60 days to completion.  Also, bids 

are back on the Hwy 98/Whispering Pines project. 

 

V. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting – February 20, 2012 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 5:45 PM.  

116



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

117



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

118



119



120



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

121



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

122



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE APPOINTING 

ENOCH TOLER TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SPECIAL CARE 

FACILITIES FINANCING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Daphne, Alabama (the 

“City”), previously has approved the formation of The Special Care Facilities Financing 

Authority of the City of Daphne (the “Authority”) in accordance with Chapter 62 of Title 11 of 

the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended (the “Act”); and  

WHEREAS, the City desires to appoint Enoch Toler who is a qualified elector of and the 

owner of real property in the City and neither of whom is an officer of the State of Alabama or of 

any county or municipality in the State of Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE AS FOLLOWS:  

1. That Enoch Toler is appointed by the City Council as a director to the Board of  

Directors of the Authority to fill the position vacated by Joan Martin. 

 

2. The term of Enoch Toler shall begin immediately, and end at noon on November  

9, 2015.   

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this the ________day of _______, 2012. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, 

      Council President 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________________ 

David L. Cohen,  

City Clerk, MMC 
 

123



124



125



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-07 

2012-B-OIL & LUBRICANTS 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the OIL & LUBRICANTS will 
exceed this amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the OIL & LUBRICANTS and determined that the bid 
as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the OIL & LUBRICANTS be awarded to Martin Energy 
Services, LLC.. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE MAYOR 

AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of Martin Energy 
Services, LLC. for unit cost listed as attached herein and made a part hereof for BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2012-B-OIL & LUBRICANTS. 
 

Product Description Quantity/Case   Unit 

Martin Energy 

Services, LLC. 

     

 SUPREME 5W-20 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 30.60 

 SUPREME 5W-30 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 30.60 
 SUPREME SYNTHETIC 10 
W30 Case of 6 - 1 Qts 31.25 
 DELO 400 MULTIGRADE 
15W40 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 36.90 
DELO 400 MULTIGRADE 15 
W40  Case - 6 - 1Gal 36.90 

111/MERCON ATF Case of 12 - 1 Qts 27.03 

 V ATF Case of 12 - 1 Qts 41.19 

 400 SAE 30 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 33.27 

 1000 THF 5 Gallon Pail 49.75 

RANDO HD68 5 Gallon Pail 48.80 

RANDO HD 32 5 Gallon Pail 48.30 

GEAR SAE 80W-90 5 Gallon Pail 52.94 

GEAR LUBRICANT 
Case of 12 - 1.8 lb 

Bottles 41.75 

Dexos Synthetic 5W-30 

Case of  6 - 1 qt 

Bottles 20.04 

Dexos Synthetic 5W-20 Case of 6 - 1 qt Bottles 31.25 

    

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS         day of                          ,2012. 

                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

           
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 126



RESOLUTION 2012-08 
  2012-C-U.S. 98 & WHISPERING PINES INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS (TURN LANES 

& SIGNALIZATION) 
  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that U.S 98 & WHISPERING PINES ROAD 

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS (TURN LANES & SIGNALIZATION) will exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the U.S 98 & WHISPERING 

PINES ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS (TURN LANES & SIGNALIZATION) and has 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has entered into an agreement with ALDOT to reimburse 50% for the 
intersection improvements ($322,368.08) at U.S. 98 & Whispering Pines Road with the City being 
responsible for 100% of the additive alternate for W.P. US Hwy 98 to Main Street ($32.395.96), 50% 

of Signalization cost payable to ALDOT(up to $60,000);  and engineering costs ($48,000) (Total project cost 

incl Engineering & signalization is-$785,132); and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for U.S 98 & WHISPERING PINES ROAD INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS (TURN LANES & SIGNALIZATION) be awarded to John G. Walton Construction 
Company, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from John 
G. Walton Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $677,132 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2012-C-U.S 98 & WHISPERING PINES ROAD INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS (TURN LANES & SIGNALIZATION) with 50% of the construction cost 
($322,368.08) to be reimbursed to the City from ALDOT.   
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                      , 2012. 
 

 
 
________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                                                                        
     

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 127



 
 
 

Resolution 2012-09 
 

RESOLUTION:  2012-G-DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL & DISPOSAL SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to secure 

competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that in the event of a natural disaster the cost for the 

DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL & DISPOSAL will exceed $ 50,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL & 

DISPOSAL and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that in the event of a declared emergency disaster that FEMA 

Eligibility requirements will have to be met to receive any type of reimbursement and these requirements must 
be followed by the City and the awarded Contractor and his subcontractors; and 

 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL & DISPOSAL be awarded to Gulf 
Equipment Corp d/b/a Crowder Gulf 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE MAYOR 
AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of Gulf Equipment Corp 
d/b/a Crowder Gulf for unit cost as attached herein and made a part hereof for BID SPECIFICATION 
NO. 2012-G-DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL & DISPOSAL SERVICES. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ____ day 
of __________  , 2012. 
 

                                                                                                                                     
________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
        
    

                                                                                                                                                                                              
_____________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
        
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

128



RESOLUTION 2012 - 10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Parks 45 2150 John Deere Tractor L02150G537223 
Mechanical  Two (2) Wayne Gas Pumps  

    
    
    
    

    
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 
this               day of                   , 2012. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk,  MMC 

129



 RESOLUTION 2012-11  

 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROJECT GRANT 

DAPHNE MIDDLE SCHOOL COUNTY ROAD 13 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne proposes to continue to construct a side walk 

adjacent to Daphne Middle School on County Road 13 to connect and extend as far as 

funds will allow and serve the French Settlement Subdivision, Sehoy Subdivision, and 

Tiawasse Subdivision and to provide for the health and well-being of the school children, 

general public and be ADA compliant; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne intends to make application to the Alabama 

Department of Transportation for grant assistance to develop a multi-use sidewalk at 

Daphne High School, and 

  

 WHEREAS, said programs are limited to funding a maximum of one hundred 

percent up to $150,000 of the proposed project cost excluding engineering cost which 

will be contracted at a fixed amount with the city engineer prior to start of the project 

after project is awarded. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Daphne supports the  

application for Safe Routes for School Grant, and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event a grant is awarded the City of 

Daphne understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable Federal and 

State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this___________ day of ___________, 2012. 

       

 

      ___________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

 

      ___________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

130



 

 
 

1 

1 

RESOLUTION 2012-12 

 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A WARRANT 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND GARDNYR MICHAEL 

CAPITAL WITH RESPECT TO THE SERIES 2012 WARRANTS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”) of Daphne, Alabama (the “City”), as 

follows: 

 

Section 1. -  Findings of Fact 

 

The Council has determined and hereby finds and declares that the following facts are true and 

correct: 

 

(a) The City of Daphne, Alabama (the “City”) has heretofore issued pursuant to an 

Ordinance adopted by the Council on August 19, 2002, (the “2002 Ordinance”), its 

City of Daphne General Obligation Warrants, Series 2002, dated August 1, 2002, 

originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $2,660,000 (the “Series 2002 

Warrants”).  

 

(b) The City has heretofore issued pursuant to an Ordinance adopted by the Council on 

September 5, 2006, (the “2006 Ordinance”), its City of Daphne Limited Obligation 

Special Tax Warrants, Series 2006, dated August 1, 2006, originally issued in the 

aggregate principal amount of $9,090,000 (the “Series 2006 Warrants”).  

 

(c) The City is not in default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Series 2002 

Warrants or the Series 2006 Warrants or under the 2002 Ordinance or the 2006 

Ordinance. 

 

(d) The Council has previously authorized the issuance and sale of the City’s general 

obligation refunding warrants (the “Series 2012 Warrants”) for the purpose of 

providing funds necessary to refund the Series 2002 Warrants and Series 2006 

Warrants.   

 

Section 2. - Authorization with respect to the Series 2012 Warrants 

 

The preparation and distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Series 2012 

Warrants is hereby ratified and affirmed.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to take all such actions as 

are necessary and appropriate to present the Series 2012 Warrants to the Council, including, without 

limitation, preparing authorizing proceedings for presentation to and approval of the Council.  In the 

event he determines that it is desirable to do so in order to obtain favorable interest rates with respect 

to the Series 2012 Warrants, the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Warrant Purchase 

Agreement between the City and Gardnyr Michael Capital, Inc. with respect to the sale of the Series  

131



 

 
 

2 

2 

RESOLTUION 2012-12  WARRANT PURCHASE AGREEMENT / GARDNYR MICHAEL CAPITAL      PAGE   2 

 

2012 Warrants, which Warrant Purchase Agreement shall be subject, however, to final approval by 

the Council of an Authorizing Resolution with respect to the Series 2012 Warrants.  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ______DAY OF ____________________, 2012. 

 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, 

MAYOR, CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

132



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-13 
 

GATOR ALLEY GRANT 

306A PUBLIC ACESS IMPROVEMENTS GRANT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne proposes to construct recreational resources at 

Gator Alley Park to provide for the health and well being of the general public; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the city intends to make application to the Alabama Department of 

Conservation and Natural Resources, State Lands Division, Coastal Section for grant 

assistance to build a connecting boardwalk bridge from the west side of D’Olive Creek; 

and  

 WHEREAS, said programs are limited to funding a maximum of fifty (50%) up 

to $50,000 of the proposed project cost estimates at ($121,050) which the city’s share 

would be ($71,050) which will be used to build the boardwalk bridge. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne make 

application for 306A Public Access Improvement Grant through the Department of 

Conservation and Natural Resources, State Lands Division, Coastal Section; and 

 

 BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event a grant is awarded, the City of 

Daphne understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable federal and 

state laws, rules, and regulations. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THE ___________ DAY OF FEBUARY, 2012. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette 

Council President 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding    

                                                                                    Mayor 

   

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

133



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-14 
 

AMPHITHEATER PLAN GRANT 

ALABAMA COASTAL AREA MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

COASTAL PLANNING PROJECTS 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne proposes to have a engineered plan for a 

amphitheater at Bay Front Park to provide for the health and well being of the general 

public; and 

   

 WHEREAS,  the proposed engineering plans cost estimates at ($75,000) which 

the city’s request would be ($75,000) which will be used to plan for a estimate $500,000 

outdoor amphitheater. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne make 

application for Alabama Coastal Area Management Program Coastal Planning Projects 

through the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, State Lands Division, 

Coastal Section; and 

 

 BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event a grant is awarded, the City of 

Daphne understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable federal and 

state laws, rules, and regulations and seek to planning that is consistent with coastal 

nonpoint source pollution control 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THE ___________ DAY OF FEBUARY, 2012. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette 

Council President 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding    

                                                                                    Mayor 

   

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

134



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-01 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 6.4.1 OF THE CITY’S  

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND TO ADD TO THE CITY’S EMPLOYEE 

HANDBOOK THE POLICY OF TRANSITIONAL DUTY 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that certain revisions to the City of Daphne Employee Handbook are necessary 

for the proper administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions to the Employee Handbook will enable the City to 

more easily facilitate and administer provisions of the Employee Handbook in order to 

benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its employees;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: REVISION TO SECTION 6.4.1 

 

 That Section 6.4.1 of the Employee Handbook, be and is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and is replaced as follows: 

 

 6.4.1. General. Any employee may be separated when he cannot perform the 

essential functions of his job because of extended physical or mental impairment. 

However, the city will attempt to reasonably accommodate to enable the disabled 

employee to adequately accomplish his required duties. Such accommodation may 

include job restructuring, reassignment, and/or transitional duty. If a reasonable 

accommodation is not possible, the individual may be separated in accordance with the 

guidelines contained herein. 

 

SECTION II: ADDITION OF TRANSITIONAL DUTY POLICY 

 

 That Section 6.4.1.1(A), entitled “Transitional Duty”, be added to the City’s 

Employee Handbook as follows: 

 

 

135



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   2 

 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(1). Scope 

 

The scope of this policy shall apply only to employees who have been injured on 

the job and such injury is being administered under the State of Alabama Workers 

Compensation Act, Ala. Code § 25-5-1, et al. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(2). Purpose 

 

It is the policy of the City to offer leaves of absence when appropriate to 

employees who are no longer medically able to continue the essential duties of their 

permanent job and to encourage their return to work consistent with their medical 

recovery and physician’s advice.  These guidelines are subject to all other applicable city 

policies, including, but not limited to, Job Posting, Lay-Off and Recall, Leave of 

Absence, Medical Disability, Family Leave (FMLA), Military, and Equal Employment 

Opportunity. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(3). Definitions 

 

A. Permanent Restriction(s):  Those restrictions issued by the treating physician,  

or the nurse, which are not expected to change during the course of employment. 

 

B. Transitional Duty:  Any temporary, modified duty(ies) of employment from  

the employee’s permanent position, while receiving worker’s compensation benefits, that 

takes into consideration the employee’s health condition and abilities; but not to last 

longer than 180 days from the date the employee begins his transitional duty assignment 

or Maximum Medical Improvement (“MMI”), whichever first occurs. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(4). General Statement 

 

All reasonable efforts will be made to return an employee to his/her former 

position or to a comparable position that is open.  Transitional Duty is to be short term 

and in no event shall it extend after an employee reaches MMI, or 180 days have 

transpired from the date the employee begins his transitional duty assignment, whichever 

occurs first.  Should an employee acquire a health condition medically precluding 

successful accomplishment of his assigned essential job functions during the healing 

period of such health condition, the city will make a reasonable effort to provide a 

temporary transitional job until such time as physician(s) ha(s)(ve) determined that the 

employee has reached MMI, or 180 days have transpired from the effective date of this 

policy, whichever first occurs.  This policy is inclusive of “FMLA” and the other city 

leave policies.  Upon reaching MMI or 180 days have transpired from the date the 

employee begins his Transitional Duty assignment, the City will determine whether a 

reasonable accommodation can be made in some available permanent job, after 

considering all medical restrictions.  If the city is unable to reasonably accommodate the  

136



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   3 
 

 

specific restriction within an available permanent position, the employee will be 

terminated unless granted administrative leave at full discretion of the Mayor. An 

employee’s transitional duty assignment may be discontinued at any time with or without 

notice. 

 

Under this Transitional Duty policy, an employee assigned to a transitional duty 

position is not presumed by the City to be handicapped or disabled for the purposes of 

any other law or statute. Individuals with handicaps or disabilities may have different 

and/or additional rights under applicable law or City policy. 

 

The time period for Transitional Duty shall begin once an employee has been 

deemed eligible to return to modified and/or light duty by their medical provider and an 

available Transitional Duty position has been located by Human Resources and the 

employee’s Department Head. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(5). Procedure 

 

1. Once the medical condition has been diagnosed, and also when the 

individual has reached MMI according to the treating physician, 

the employee must advise his/her supervisor and the Human 

Resource Director. 

 

2. (a)   During the healing period, the Transitional Duty program 

will be made available, as set forth in section 6.4.1.1(A)(4) of this 

Policy. 

 

(b) Upon reaching MMI, the treating physician shall indicate 

whether or not the person has any permanent restrictions.  The 

Human Resource Director will review those permanent restrictions 

and will decide if the employee can return to their former 

permanent job or some other available permanent job for which the 

employee has the requisite qualifications and eligibility.  Should an 

employee have a need for accommodated duty, and no such duty is 

available, documentation supporting the search for an 

accommodation(s) shall be placed in the employee’s file. 

 

3. Productive Transitional Duty job assignments are designed to 

assist employees with returning to their former full time permanent 

job.  When an employee starts Transitional Duty assignment, a 

specific duration period shall be established.  This duration period 

shall not exceed 180 days or MMI, whichever first occurs. 

 

4. The employee will be compensated at the normal rate of pay for 

the position. In the event the pay scale for the position is less than  

137



ORDINANCE 2012-01                         TRANSITIONAL DUTY                           PAGE   4 
 

 

5. the employee’s normal rate of pay (pre-injury) the employee shall 

receive the normal rate of pay for the position plus 66 2/3% of the 

difference between the normal rate of pay for the position and the 

employee’s pre-injury wage. 

 

6. Should an employee have a need for accommodated duty and no 

permanent jobs are available after reaching MMI or the expiration 

of 180 days, documentation supporting the search for 

accommodation(s) shall be placed in the employee’s file.  A copy 

of the completed documentation will then be sent to the Human 

Resources Director. If no permanent employment positions, 

subject to the employee’s medical condition(s), are available after 

said search; the employee shall be terminated unless granted 

administrative leave at full discretion of the Mayor. 

 

7. When an employee returns to full duties, he/she will be required to 

provide appropriate medical documentation. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(6). Renewal 

   

Should an employee injure himself, re-aggravate a pre-existing injury, or 

otherwise develop a health condition requiring medical attention while on his transitional 

duty assignment, but not relieving him of his ability to continue employment in his 

transitional duty assignment; he must provide documentation from his medical provider 

evidencing his ability to return to his transitional duty assignment and the amount of time 

he is to refrain from work or any applicable limitation.  

 

When the employee returns to his initial assignment, the maximum time period of 

180 days of which an employee may be placed on transitional duty begins anew. Leave of 

absence for any illness or health condition not related to the injury or medical condition 

causing the transitional duty assignment shall not affect the time period the employee 

may be placed upon transitional duty. 

 

6.4.1.1(A)(7). Implementation 

 

The City’s policy on Transitional Duty as expressed heretofore shall begin upon 

its approval by the City Council and publication as mandated by Alabama law. All City 

employees placed on any light or modified duty, as determined by their supervisor or the 

Human Resources Director, before this policy on Transitional Duty’s approval by the 

City Council and publication as mandated by Alabama law shall be exempt from said 

policy. Any employee placed on any light or modified duty before the enactment of this 

Transitional Duty policy that returns to permanent duty, or their prior position, shall be 

subject to this Transitional Duty policy upon return to permanent duty or their prior 

position. 

138



ORDINANCE 2012-01           TRANSITIONAL DUTY                     PAGE   5 
 

 

 

 SECTION III: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of 

Daphne, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

  

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                                                   

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR. 

MAYOR                                        
            

    

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

139



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2012-06 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH PROTOCOL FOR THE APPROPRIATION 

OF FUNDING FOR OUTSIDE AGENCIES 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that an established procedure and protocol as to the granting of City monies to 

outside agencies is necessary for the proper administration of the same; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said procedure and protocol will enable the City to more easily stay 

within its yearly established budget; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions will benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its 

citizens;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 

 

The following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them herein unless the context 

clearly indicates otherwise:  

 

Agency. An individual, organization, association or corporation whether for profit 

or nonprofit, that requests funding from the city for use on a regular or annual basis. 

Agency includes any entity whose funding from the city would be within the provisions 

of section 94 and/or Amendment 112 of the Alabama Constitution of 1901, and any 

public or quasi-public entities authorized by state law to receive municipal funding. The 

federal government, the State of Alabama or any agency thereof are excluded from the 

definition of agency.  

 

Audit. A detailed written statement of all receipts and expenses of the agency for 

the immediately preceding fiscal year and an analysis thereof by a reputable, disinterested 

and certified public accountant or the office of the State of Alabama Examiners of Public 

Accounts conducted pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles. The audit shall 

include any management letter prepared by the certified public accountant that prepared 

the audit. A financial statement balance sheet or summary thereof will not substitute for 

an audit.  

 

Funding. An appropriation in a municipal budget of city monies (or federal funds) 

for public purposes to benefit residents of the city for which the agency proposes to 

operate and the expenditures of those funds for those purposes to the agency. Funding  

140



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   2 

 

 

also includes the lending of credit, in kind services, the use of city employees or 

equipment and anything of value of the city.  

 

SECTION II:   REQUEST FOR FUNDING 

 

(a) Generally. Any agency requesting funding from the City of Daphne for the next fiscal 

year of the city shall submit the same to the city finance director in writing. Such request 

shall be plainly designated as such and shall include all information pertinent to the 

agency and the purpose for which funding is requested. The request for funding shall 

occur well in advance of the commencement of the city's fiscal year and no later than a 

date established by the mayor. Such request shall be in a form and pursuant to funding 

request requirements of the mayor and the city finance department.  

 

(b) Supporting documents. The agency shall submit with its funding request the 

following documents:  

 

(1)  A financial report in the form of an audit, review or compilation.  

  

(2) An annual report (if agency was in operation or existence during the 

preceding fiscal year). 

 

(3) On one schedule: 

 

a. The adopted budget of the agency for the prior fiscal year 

(if agency was in operation or existence during the 

preceding fiscal year).  

 

b. The agency's current fiscal year final adopted budget. 

 

c. The agency's preliminary budget for the next fiscal year 

(fiscal year to which funding request applies). 

 

(4) A statement that the agency requires an officer of the agency's board to co-

sign all checks; provided, however, if the agency has submitted an audit to 

the city, it shall not be required to submit such a statement or engage in 

such practice.  

 

(5) Any additional information the city may determine is relevant to evaluate 

the funding request. 

 

(6) A written certification to the finance director that a copy of the agency's 

financial reports, annual report, and management letter are available for 

public viewing and where the same may be viewed.  

 

141



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   3 

 

 

SECTION III:   FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

(a) Required. Each agency requesting funding from the city shall have conducted a 

financial report consisting either of an audit, review or compilation, depending upon the 

circumstances and as herein defined of the agency's respective finances. All such 

financial reports shall include a management letter which shall be delivered to the city 

upon completion, but no later than the agency's request to the city for funding for the next 

fiscal year.  

 

(b) Financial reports.  

 

(1) Audits. Agencies that are requesting for the next fiscal year and/or have 

received in the previous fiscal year more than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) 

from the city in annual funding shall have a formal audit of their respective finances for 

the preceding year conducted by an independent CPA and submit the same with its 

request. Such audit shall meet all criteria of generally accepted accounting principles and 

consist, at a minimum, of an extensive review of the agency's finances by a qualified 

accounting firm to assure that adequate controls are in place, testing various types of 

documentation and confirming balances (cash receivables, payables, etc.)  

 

(2) Reviews. Agencies that are requesting for the next fiscal year and/or have 

received in the previous fiscal year less than or equal to twenty-five thousand dollars 

($25,000.00) but more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from the city in annual 

funding shall have a review financial report of the agency's preceding-year financial 

statements conducted by an independent CPA and submit the same with its request to the 

city. Such review shall meet the criteria of generally accepted accounting principles and 

consist of various inquiries of the agency by the accounting firm, performance of certain 

analytical procedures and a representation letter from the agency.  

 

(3) Compilation. Agencies that are requesting for the next fiscal year and/or 

received in the previous fiscal year less than or equal to ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) 

from the city in annual funding shall have a compilation of its finances for the preceding 

year conducted by an independent CPA and submit the same with its request. Such 

compilation shall meet the criteria of generally accepted accounting principles and 

provide adequate information concerning the agency's finances in a financial statement 

format.  

 

(4) Exceptions.  

 

a. Provided, however, for agencies of which an audit is required, if 

the agency has not previously been funded by the city in the prior 

fiscal year and if the agency has not had an audit conducted, as 

otherwise required herein, then that agency shall submit one of the 

following in descending order:  

142



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   4 

 

 

1. The most recent year's audit. 

 

2. A review of the agency's most recent year's 

financial statement by an independent CPA. 

 

3. Compilation of the most recent year's financial 

statements. 

 

b. An audit, as herein defined, will not be required from any agency 

completely funded by the city through community development 

block grants (CDBG) or emergency shelter grants (ESG).  

 

c. Regardless of whether the agency has been funded in previous 

years by the city, should the finance director determine that, due to 

circumstances essentially beyond the agency's control, it would 

impose an undue hardship on the agency to provide any or all of 

the supporting documents otherwise required by this article, he/she 

may waive, defer, or modify such requirement and/or permit a 

substitute supporting document subject to terms he/she determines 

appropriate.  

 

(5) Notwithstanding anything in here to the contrary, during the course of 

consideration of an agency funding request, the agency may be required to 

provide additional information to the mayor, finance department or the 

city council.  

 

SECTION IV:  ANNUAL REPORT 

 

(a) Each agency requesting or receiving funding from the city shall submit in writing 

an annual report on the activities of the organization. Such a report shall be delivered to 

the city finance director and the mayor no later than the agency's request to the city for 

funding for the next fiscal year.  

 

(b) The annual report shall provide information demonstrating that the services 

provided by the agency within the corporate limits of the city, at least equal if not exceed 

the funding from the city for that year.  

 

(c) The annual report shall also relate the specific activities of the agency during the 

year to the purpose for which the agency was created and as represented in any city 

funding contract or request to the city.  

 

(d) The executive director of the agency shall also certify in writing to the city 

finance director that a copy of the said annual report is available for public viewing and 

where the public viewing may be held.  

143



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   5 
 

 

SECTION V:  REPORTS TO CITY APPOINTEES ON AGENCY BOARDS 

 

All reports, evaluations and audits herein required of any agency to be funded by 

the city shall also be provided by the agency to any person appointed by the city or the 

mayor to sit upon the governing board of the agency.  

 

SECTION VI:  NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

Any agency receiving funding from the city as herein provided shall covenant and 

agree that in performing its responsibilities and obligations, that neither the agency nor its 

officers, agents or employees will on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national 

origin or handicap, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of 

persons in any manner.  

 

SECTION VII:  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND 

REGULATIONS  

 

Each agency receiving funding from the city shall execute an agency funding 

contract as prepared by the city legal department and shall agree to abide by all the terms 

and conditions thereof and to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and 

regulations.  

 

SECTION VIII:  TERMS OF FUNDING 

 

Each agency receiving funds from the city shall represent and warrant to the city 

that it is authorized by law to receive funding and that such funding will not be in 

violation of Article IV, Section 94 or Amendment 112 of the Constitution of Alabama or 

any other constitutional or statutory provision. Each agency shall also set forth specific 

statutory authority to receive funding from the city if such authority exists. Agency shall 

also warrant that funding from the city will only be used to perform acts which the city is 

otherwise authorized to perform itself or to fund.  

 

SECTION IX:  BUDGET REQUIREMENTS 

 

Each agency receiving funding from the city shall adopt as a part of its annual 

operating procedure, a written budget which will indicate principal sources of anticipated 

revenue of the agency and stating sums appropriated for expenditure by the agency 

during the fiscal year. The agency's budget may be supported by other documents to 

further explain or delineate the purpose, nature and amount of appropriations made 

therein, but such other documents shall be attached thereto. The agency must adopt a 

balanced budget.  

 

 

 

144



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   6 

 

 

SECTION X:  POSITION OF CITY 

 

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this ordinance or funding agreement, the 

city shall have no financial interest in the business of the agency and shall not be liable 

for any debts or obligations incurred by any agency, nor shall the city be deemed or 

construed to be a partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested in the assets of the 

agency or profits earned or derived by agency, nor shall agency at any time or times 

choose the name or credit of the city in purchasing or attempting to purchase any 

equipment, supplies or other thing or things of value whatsoever. Neither the city nor its 

officers, agents or employees shall be liable for damages, claims, actions or causes of 

action brought against the agency or for the activities of the agency.  

 

(b) The agency in performing its operations and obligations under any funding 

contract with the city shall not be deemed to be the agent of the city but shall be deemed 

to be an independent contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own 

expense as the city may from time to time request to indicate that it is an independent 

contractor. The city does not and will not assume any responsibility for the means by 

which or manner in which services by agency are performed, but on the contrary, agency 

shall be wholly responsible therefor.  

 

SECTION XI:    WAIVER 

 

 The City reserves the right to waive any requirement established by this 

Ordinance for any agency. The City’s decision to waive any requirement shall be 

determined on a case by case basis and take into consideration factors including, but not 

limited to: 

 

a. The amount requested by an agency and said agency’s ability to comply 

with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

 

b. Exigent circumstances eliminating the ability of the agency to comply 

with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XII:   SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

  

 

 

145



ORDINANCE 2012-06                                                                                        PAGE   7 

 

 

SECTION XIII:   EFFECTIVE DATE 

         This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                                                    

 

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, Jr.  

MAYOR                                        
            

    

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

146



 
 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2012-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 / SALARY OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Six Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Seven 

Cents($666.67) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Vice President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 

2012, shall be and the same in hereby fixed at  Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Members of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That the City Council Members shall be entitled to a cell phone, to participate in the city’s 

health insurance plan at the same rate as employee cost, and to receive an annual increase in salary 

based on the Annual Cost of Living Adjustment for Social Security, if any. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That an Ordinance setting forth the salary of the City Council Members is hereby repealed to the 

extent that the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, and 

shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

147



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-07             SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS                  PAGE     2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _______ day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnettte, 

       Council President 

        

 

 

_____________________________________  

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

148



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2012-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 / SALARY OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Six Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Seven 

Cents($666.67) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Vice President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 

2012, shall be and the same in hereby fixed at  Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Members of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That the City Council Members shall be entitled to a cell phone, and to participate in the 

city’s health insurance plan at the same rate as employee cost. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That an Ordinance setting forth the salary of the City Council Members is hereby repealed to the 

extent that the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, and 

shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

 

 

 

149



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-08             SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS                  PAGE     2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _______ day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnettte, 

       Council President 

        

 

 

_____________________________________  

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

150



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

   ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 / SALARY OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-16 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Six Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Seven Cents 

($666.67) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Vice President of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 

2012, shall be and the same in hereby fixed at  Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the salary of the City Council Members of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, 

shall be and the same is hereby fixed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) semi-monthly. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That the City Council Members shall be entitled to a cell phone, and to receive an annual 

increase in salary based on the Annual Cost of Living Adjustment for Social Security, if any. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That an Ordinance setting forth the salary of the City Council Members is hereby repealed to the 

extent that the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, and 

shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

 

 

 

151



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09             SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS                  PAGE     2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _______ day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnettte, 

       Council President 

        

 

 

_____________________________________  

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 
 

152



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-10          
  
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2008-17 / 

THE SALARY OF THE MAYOR 

  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2008-17 TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: 

 

That the salary of the Mayor of the City of Daphne, commencing November 5, 2012, shall be 

and the same is hereby fixed at Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) annually, to be paid in 

twenty-four (24) equal installments on the first and second payroll of each month. 

 

SECTION TWO: 

 

That as additional compensation, the Mayor shall be entitled to reimbursement for use of 

his/her personal vehicle at the rate of reimbursement according to the current Internal Revenue rate. 

 

SECTION THREE: 

 

That the Mayor shall be entitled to all health care benefits, which may be provided for full-

time employees of the City of Daphne, and to a cell phone. 

 

SECTION FOUR: 

 

That any Ordinance setting forth the salary of the Mayor is hereby repealed to the extent that 

the provisions of such Ordinance conflict with the provisions hereof. 

 

SECTION FIVE: 

 

That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law, 

and shall continue in force and effect until repealed by action of the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

153



 
ORDINANCE  2012-10                           SALARY OF MAYOR                            PAGE    2 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this ________ day of _________, 2012. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette,    

       Council President 

        

 

                                                                                    _____________________________________ 

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

       Mayor 

        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

David L. Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 
 

154



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

ORDINANCE 2012-11 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne (“Daphne Utilities”) is required to 

receive the consent of the City of Daphne under the provisions of Ala. Code § 11-50-314(a)(10) 

before it leases property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the management of Daphne Utilities has determined that it is in the best 

interest of Daphne Utilities to lease property to the City of Daphne as described in detail on 

Exhibit A; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Daphne Utilities has approved the lease of the 

property to the City of Daphne as described in Exhibit A. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED  that the council of the City of Daphne does 

hereby consent to the lease by Daphne Utilities of the property described on Exhibit A, to the 

City of Daphne.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

155



 

Adopted and Approved by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama this _______ 

day of _________________, 2012. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette,  Council President 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

       

156



EXHIBIT A 

157



 

Page 1 of 8 

 AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT dated this ____ day of _______________, 201__ 

by and between The Utilities Board of the City of Daphne (“Daphne Utilities” 

or “Lessor”) and the City of Daphne, Alabama, (“Lessee”). 

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
 ARTICLE ONE 

 Leased Property 

 1.1 Daphne Utilities hereby agrees to lease to Lessee and Lessee 

hereby rents from Daphne Utilities its Portable Bathroom Trailer (hereinafter 

the “Equipment”) in exchange for ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS and NO CENTS 

($100.00) per year and all consideration as stated in this Agreement.  The 

Equipment shall be located on the South side of the parking lot of Bayside 

Park. 

 1.2 The Portable Bathroom Trailer subject to this lease is more 

particularly described as approximately 120 square foot trailer manufactured 

by Diamond Builders, Inc. in 2011.  The manufacturer’s identification 

number is DBI 4769. 

 ARTICLE TWO 

 Leasing Term 

2.1 The term of this Agreement shall begin on the _____ day of 

_________, 201 _ and run for ten (10) years.  Should the Equipment be 

returned sooner than the term of the lease, the rent owed by Lessee will be 

pro rated.  

158



 

Page 2 of 8 

ARTICLE THREE 

 Compliance with Requirements 

 3.1 Lessee will promptly procure, maintain and comply with all 

permits, licenses, certifications and other authorizations required for the use 

and maintenance of the Equipment for the lawful operation thereof.  Daphne 

Utilities will join in the application for any permit or authorization with 

respect to any legal requirements if such joinder is necessary and requested 

by Lessee in writing. 

 ARTICLE FOUR 

 Condition, Alterations and Additions 

 4.1 Condition.  Daphne Utilities leases the Equipment in “as is” 

condition.  Lessee is responsible for the cost to repair, replace, clean or 

otherwise restore the Equipment to its pre-existing condition, ordinary wear 

and tear excepted.  If, upon inspection during the lease term Daphne 

Utilities the Equipment is not being well maintained (as determined in 

Daphne Utilities’ sole discretion), Daphne Utilities may terminate this 

agreement, take possession of the Equipment and will return a pro rata 

portion of paid rent for the unused term. 

 4.2 Alterations and Addition.  Lessee may not make additions, 

improvements or alterations of the Equipment without written consent from 

Daphne Utilities. 

 4.3 Removal During Times of Peril.  In the event of impending or 

existing peril (including, but not limited to, hurricane, tornados, flooding, 

159



 

Page 3 of 8 

other natural disasters, riots or other dangerous circumstances), if, in 

Daphne Utilities’ estimation, the Equipment is threatened by the impending 

or existing peril, Daphne Utilities and the Lessee agree that, without notice, 

Daphne Utilities may remove the Equipment and take full possession of the 

Equipment.  Daphne Utilities agrees to be responsible for the cost of removal 

and transportation of the Equipment.  When, in Daphne Utilities’ estimation, 

the peril has abated, Daphne Utilities will return the Equipment and Daphne 

Utilities will be responsible for the cost of reinstallation of the Equipment. 

 ARTICLE FIVE 
 Insurance 

 5.1 Insurance.  Lessee agrees to purchase casualty and liability 

insurance that covers the Equipment.  Lessee further agrees that Daphne 

Utilities has sole discretion to determine the sufficiency of the insurance 

Lessee purchases to satisfy this requirement of this Agreement.  At a 

minimum, Lessee agrees to provide casualty insurance coverage in the 

minimum amount of $25,000 and liability insurance coverage in the 

minimum amount of $1,000,000. 

 5.2 Additional Insured.  Lessee agrees that Daphne Utilities will be 

named as an additional insured on any and all insurance policies covering 

the Equipment. 

 5.3 Assignment.  Lessee hereby assigns to Daphne Utilities any 

award or payment on account of any damage, theft, destruction, or other 

which is payable to Lessee in connection with the Equipment.  Lessee agrees 

160



 

Page 4 of 8 

that this Agreement shall control the rights of Daphne Utilities and Lessee in 

any such award, and any contrary provision of any present or future laws is 

hereby waived. 

ARTICLE SIX 

Notice 

 6.1 If there is any damage to or destruction of the Equipment, 

Lessee will promptly give notice thereof to Daphne Utilities, describing the 

nature and extent thereof. 

 ARTICLE SEVEN 

 Use of the Equipment 

 7.1 Lessee’s Use.  Lessee may use the Equipment for any legally 

permissible use.  Lessee agrees to be responsible for the cost of any and all 

utilities required for use of the Equipment. 

 7.2 Daphne Utilities’ Use.  Daphne Utilities specifically reserves 

the right to use the Equipment for the purposes of advertising.  Such 

advertising includes, but is not limited to, the placement of signage in or on 

the Equipment. 

ARTICLE EIGHT 

 No Warranties 

 8.1 Daphne Utilities makes no warranties, express or implied, 

regarding the condition, fitness, safety or other state or use of the 

Equipment.   

 Lessee, for itself, its agents, its officers, its Employees, its 

affiliates and all others waives each and every warranty, whether 

161



 

Page 5 of 8 

express or implied, regarding the fitness, condition, safety or other 

state or use of the Equipment. 

ARTICLE NINE 

Indemnity and Release 

 9.1 Release.  Lessee agrees to release and hold harmless Daphne 

Utilities, its officers, directors, managers, employees, successors, assigns, 

agents and other representatives and affiliates, for any damage or injury 

arising out of the transportation, any usage, maintenance, storage or other 

use of the Equipment during the Leasing Term or otherwise arising from the 

Lessee’s use or possession of the Equipment.  Lessee specifically 

acknowledges that this provision survives termination of this Agreement.  

 9.2 Indemnity.  Lessee agrees to indemnify Daphne Utilities for any 

claims, suits, complaints, grievances or other causes brought against 

Daphne Utilities for any damage or injury sustained arising out of the 

transportation, usage, maintenance, storage or other use of the Equipment 

during the Leasing Term or otherwise arising from the Lessee’s use or 

possession of the Equipment.  Lessee acknowledges that such indemnity 

includes any awards, settlements, fees, costs, expenses, attorney’s fees or 

other expenses incurred by Daphne Utilities in the settling, defending, 

handling, addressing or otherwise managing of any such claim.  However, 

this indemnity provision will not be construed to require Lessee to indemnify 

Lessor for any acts of the Lessor (including, but not limited to, Lessor’s 

transportation of the Equipment).  Lessee also specifically acknowledges that 

162



 

Page 6 of 8 

this provision survives the termination of this Agreement. 

 

 ARTICLE TEN 

 Assignment 

 10.1 Lessee may not assign this Agreement without the express 

written consent of Daphne Utilities.  

ARTICLE ELEVEN 

 Amendment 

 11.1 This Agreement may not be amended, modified, or terminated, 

nor may any obligation hereunder be waived orally, and no such 

amendment, modification, termination or waiver shall be effective for any 

purpose unless it is in writing, signed by the party against whom 

enforcement thereof is sought. 

 ARTICLE TWELVE 
 Miscellaneous 

 12.1 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement or any 

application thereof shall be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Agreement and any other application of such provision shall not be affected 

thereby. 

 12.2 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the successors and assigns of 

the parties hereto and shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 12.3 Captions.  The Article and the Section headings are for 

convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the 

163



 

Page 7 of 8 

meaning hereof. 

 12.4 Governing Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement is 

executed in Alabama.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the state of Alabama. 

 12.5  Venue.  The parties agree that for the enforcement, collection or 

other legal action, associated with this Agreement, the proper venue will be 

the State and Federal courts whose jurisdiction includes Baldwin County, 

Alabama. 

 12.6   Relationship of Parties.  Daphne Utilities and Lessee shall not 

be considered or deemed to be joint venturers or partners and neither shall 

have the power to bind or obligate the other except as set forth herein. 

 12.7  Authority.  The Lessee affirmatively represents that it has full 

and proper authority to execute this Agreement. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement 

as of the date first written above. 

 

    THE UTILITIES BOARD OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

  
 

    _____________________________________ 
    (signature) 

 
    By: _________________, Its _____________ 

    (printed) 
 

 

164



 

Page 8 of 8 

 

    THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, Lessee 
 

 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    (signature) 

 
    By:_________________, Its _____________ 

    (printed) 
 

165



ORDINANCE 2012-12 
 

OTHER PERSONNEL COST: BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further reviewing the FY2012 Budget after adoption a section of 
other personnel cost was found to need updating to reflect the department’s full 
personnel costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the updated cost of the other personnel for the Building Maintenance 
was not budgeted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $43,791 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for Other Personnel 
cost for the Building Maintenance department. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

166



ORDINANCE 2012-13  
 

ADDITIONAL AUDIT/CPA SERVICES:  
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional services from a Certified Public Accountant may be required 
to complete the City’s Financial Reports/Statements for preparation of the FY2011 
Year End Audit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s current auditors will perform these additional duties in 
conjunction with the annual audit; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $4,000 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for preparation of the 
FY2011 Year End Financial Reports/Statements. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

167



ORDINANCE 2012-14  
 

BONDING:  FINANCE DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, since the new position of Deputy Finance Director is taking on 
responsibilities of researching and reporting on pending Bond Issues and other 
Financial activities while assisting or in the absence of the Finance Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of this additional bonding for Finance personnel was not 
budgeted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $1,750 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for bonding of the 
Finance Deputy Director. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

168



ORDINANCE 2012-15 
 
 

COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION: BARC (The Baldwin County Humane Society)  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 

WHEREAS,  BARC was formed to provide a means for the prevention of cruelty 
to animals within Baldwin County, to promote the adoption of homeless cats and 
dogs to good homes; and to help alleviate cruelty to and suffering of animals 
wherever such may occur. 

WHEREAS,  BARC also provides spay/neuter vouchers, the BARC Pet Food 
Pantry and other programs for animals; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to make a $2,500 contribution to BARC. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $2,500 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for a contribution to 
BARC (The Baldwin County Humane Society).  Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized 
to execute an agreement, on behalf of the City of Daphne, as necessary for such 
purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 

  

                                                                      ________________________________ 
Cathy Barnette, Council President    

 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 
 

169



 
 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
BALDWIN COUNTY ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this the ____ day of 
__________, 2012, by and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal 
Corporation, of the State of Alabama (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" 
or "the City"), and BARC (The Baldwin County Humane Society),  (hereinafter 
sometimes referred to as the “Agency"): 
 
 
W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has requested that the City of Daphne 
appropriate funds for its use for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the 
residents of the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to have the Agency perform 
certain services during the 2012 fiscal year. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it 
is mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
 
I. AUTHORITY 
 
 Agency represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to 
receive funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article 
IV, Section 94, or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or 
any other constitutional or statutory provision. 
 
Agency further warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform 
public services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to 
fund itself. 
 
II. SERVICES 
 
 The Agency shall provide the following public services within the 
Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne: 
 
To provide a means for the prevention of cruelty to animals within Baldwin 
County, to promote the adoption of homeless cats and dogs to good homes; and 
to help alleviate cruelty to and suffering of animals wherever such may occur. 
 

170



 
 If Agency provides public services both inside and outside the Corporate 
Limits of the City, then, if requested by the City or its representative, it shall 
submit an audit report demonstrating that services by the Agency, at least to the 
extent of the funding herein, shall be and were provided within the Corporate 
Limits of the City, including an identification of the number of City residents 
served by said agency. 
 
III.  APPROPRIATION 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Agency in the following amount for 
the 2012 fiscal year: $ 2,500 (Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars), said amount 
to be paid pursuant to a method determined by the Finance Director of the City.  
The Finance Director of the City or his/her designee shall be the representative 
of the City for the administration and implementation of the provisions hereof on 
behalf of the City. 
 
IV.  SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Agency except to the extent 
set out expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a 
separate valid written agreement between the City and Agency, then this 
Funding Agreement is supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the 
terms of the latest written agreement shall prevail. 
 
V.  TERM; TERMINATION 
 
 The terms of this Agreement shall commerce upon approval of 
Council, and shall continue in force until the 30th day of September, 2012, 
unless sooner terminated.  Provided, however, in the event a new contract is not 
executed by the commencement of the new fiscal year, the City may elect to 
continue funding if appropriated by budget or budget continuation provisions and 
if so, the Agency agrees to remain bound by the terms of this Agreement and to 
continue to provide all services hereunder until a new funding contract is 
executed. The contract is otherwise terminated as set forth herein or if the official 
City budget does not contain an appropriation for the Agency.  Either party to this 
Agreement may, with or without cause, terminate this Agreement as to the first 
day of any month by giving the other party no less than thirty (30) days written 
notice thereof.  In event of termination by either party, the Agency shall refund to 
the City an amount equal to the excess of the total amount appropriated over an 
amount which bears the same ratio to the total amount appropriated as the 
month(s) actually performed bear to the total months covered by this Agreement. 
 
VI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 This Agency hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its 

171



responsibilities and obligations hereunder, the Agency, its officers, agents and 
employees will not, on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or 
disability, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of 
persons, in any manner.  The Agency further agrees to comply with all applicable 
state and federal ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated thereunder.  The Agency further 
agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said coordinator will be responsible for 
ensuring that the Agency is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for services and 
programs as to the Agency's state of compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
VII.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 It is agreed between the City and the Agency that the Agency is an 
independent contractor.  Neither the City nor its officers, agents or employees 
shall be liable for damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, brought against 
the Agency, for the activities of the Agency. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, it is agreed that 
the City has no financial interest in the business of Agency, and shall not be 
liable for any debts or obligations incurred by Agency, nor shall the City be 
deemed or construed to be partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested party 
in the assets of Agency, or profits earned or derived by Agency, nor shall Agency 
at any time or times use the name or credit of the City in purchasing or 
attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or other thing or things 
whatsoever. 
 
 Agency in the performance of its operations and obligations hereunder 
shall not be deemed to be the agent of the City but shall be deemed to be an 
independent contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own 
expense as City may from time to time request to indicate that it is an 
independent contractor.  City does not and will not assume any responsibility for 
the means by which or manner in which services by Agency, provided for herein, 
are performed, but on the contrary, Agency shall be wholly responsible therefore. 
 
VIII.  INDEMNITY 
 
 The Agency hereby covenants with the City that it will indemnify and hold 
the City and its officers, agents and employees harmless for or on account of any 
claim, suit, cause of action or judgment arising out of or in any manner 
associated with this Agreement or services provided or performed by Agency or 
any of its officers, agents or employees. 
 
IX.  NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

172



 
 It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that they be the only parties 
to the Agreement and to expressly exclude third party beneficiaries; no person 
not a party to the Agreement may claim benefits under the Agreement. 
 
 
X.  SERVICE AREA 
 
 Agency shall submit, if requested by the City, to the Office of the Finance 
Director of the City, a written monthly report of the Agency's activities and 
expenditures, including, but not limited to, information demonstrating that 
services by the Agency within the Corporate Limits of the City at least equal, if 
not exceed, the funding from the City for that month.  Should the City determine 
at any time during the term of this Contract that Agency is not providing services 
within the City Corporate Limits at least equal to the funding herein, then the City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately.  Upon such termination, Agency may 
be, at the sole discretion of the City, required to refund any funds deemed by the 
City not to have been appropriately expended within the Corporate Limits. 
 
XI.  BOOKS AND RECORDS/REPORTS 
 
 Agency shall, at the request of the City, throw open and provide, at a time 
and place designated by the City, all books, records, accounts, statements and 
other documents as needed by the City to enable it to conduct a financial and/or 
operational review or audit of agency operations and/or finances.  If Agency 
refuses to honor the City's request within ten (10) days, it shall refund to the City 
all funds appropriated to it during the term of the contract.  All reports, 
evaluations and audits required shall be provided by Agency to any person 
appointed by the City or the Mayor to the Agency's governing body. 
 
XII.  AUDIT 
 
 The City may require Agency to have its financial records audited by an 
independent CPA firm.  A copy of the audited financial statements will be mailed 
to the City's Finance Director as soon as possible after the statements are 
issued. 
 
XIII.  OPEN MEETING, PUBLIC RECORDS, COMPETITIVE BIDS 
AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 A. As Agency is receiving public funds and/or other things of public 
value, including in-kind services, use of City employees and/or equipment from 
the City pursuant to this agreement, Agency agrees as follows: 
 
 1. To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of Daphne, 
all meetings of the governing or controlling body of the Agency or any committee 

173



or subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public when any issue or matter 
involving or relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement is discussed or 
considered and when there is any discussion or consideration of the use of public 
funds or things of value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 2. Public Records.  To the same and like extent as is applicable to the 
City of Daphne pursuant to State law, all records, documents, letters, minutes, 
memoranda, etc. of the Agency shall be open to public inspection and copying 
when the same pertain to any issue or matter involving or relating directly or 
indirectly to the performance by Agency of this Agreement or the use of public 
funds or other things of value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 3. Expenditure of Public Funds.  To the same and like extent as is 
applicable to the City pursuant to State law, all expenditures or disbursements of 
funds received by the Agency, whether directly or indirectly, from the City shall 
be subject to competitive bidding. 
 
XIV.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto 
that in the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to 
be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both 
parties to be invalid, the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision 
herein contained, shall not affect other remaining and valid covenants or 
conditions herein unless such invalidity renders performance of the essential 
elements of the contract impossible. 
 
XV.  MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 Capacity: Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the 
other as follows: 
 
 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal 
entity duly organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules 
and regulations. 
 
 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this Agreement, 
to perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent 
applicable, to grant, convey and/or transfer, areas, assets, facilities, properties, 
(both real and personal), permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full 
power and right to acquire and accept the same. 
 
 C. That to the extent required, each Party has obtained the necessary 
approval of its governing body or board and a resolution or other binding act has 
been duly and properly enacted by such governing body or board authorizing this 
Agreement and said approval has been reduced to writing and certified or 

174



attested by the appropriate official of the Party. 
 
 D. That each Party has duly authorized and empowered a 
representative to execute this Agreement on their respective behalf and the 
execution of the Agreement by such representative fully and completely binds the 
Party to the terms and conditions hereof. 
 
 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this Agreement by a 
representative of the party shall constitute a certification that all such 
authorization for execution exists and has been performed and the other Party 
shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To the extent a Party is a partnership, 
limited liability company or joint venture, the execution of this Agreement by any 
member thereof shall bind the Party and to the extent that the execution of 
Agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or specific member then 
the person so executing this Agreement is duly authorized to act in such capacity 
for the Party. 
 
 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that there is 
no litigation, claim, or administrative action threatened or pending or other 
proceedings to its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact 
upon this transaction or upon either's ability to conclude the transaction or 
perform pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, 
approvals and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 Final Integration: This Agreement together with any amendments, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final 
integration thereof with respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct 
conflict between the provisions hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, 
the latter shall supersede the former.  All written or oral understandings and 
agreements heretofore had between and among the parties are merged into this 
Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses their understandings.  
No representation, warranty or covenant made by any party which is not 
contained in this Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied on by 
any party in entering into this Agreement. 
 
 Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party 
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the 
other party's employees agents or contractors. 
 
 Amendment in Writing: This Agreement may not be amended, modified, 
altered, changed, terminated or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a 
further agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 

175



 
 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatees, distributees, successors, 
and assigns.  If any provision in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Captions: The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and 
reference only, are not a part of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, 
extend or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 Constructions: This Agreement shall be construed in its entirety 
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed against the party who 
provided or drafted it. 
 
 Mandatory and Permissive: "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, 
"may" is permissive. 
 
 Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the 
validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms, the interpretation of the 
rights, the duties of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and all other 
matters relating to this Agreement. 
 
 Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation: No party to this Agreement 
may assign or delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written 
consent of all other parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment 
or delegation.  No such assignment or delegation shall in any manner 
whatsoever relieve any party from its obligations and duties hereunder and such 
assigning or delegating party shall in all respects remain liable irrespective of 
such assignment or delegation. 
 
 Waiver: Non enforcement of any provision of this Agreement by either 
party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the 
enforceability of that provision or of the remaining terms and conditions of the 
Agreement. 
 
 Ownership of Contract Documents: The Contract Documents, and 
copies of parts thereof, are furnished and owned by the City.  All portions of the 
Contract Document, and copies of parts thereof, are the instruments of serve for 
this project.  They are not to be used on other work and are to be returned to the 
City on request at the completion of the work.  Any reuse of these materials 
without specific written verification or adaptation by the City will be at the risk of 
the user and without liability or legal expense to the City.  Such user shall hold 
the City harmless from any and all damages, including reasonable attorneys 
fees, from any and all claims arising from any such reuse.  Any such verification 
and adoption shall entitle the City to further compensation at rates to be agreed 

176



upon by the user and the City. 
 
 Fines and Penalties The Contractor shall be solely liable for any and all 
fines or penalties which may be levied by any governmental authority against the 
Owner and/or Contractor which are related to the Contractor's operations.  The 
Owner shall deduct the amount of the levied fine or penalty from the Contract 
amount. 
 
 Agreement Date/Counterparts: The date of this Agreement is intended 
as and for a date for the convenient identification of this Agreement and is not 
intended to indicate that this Agreement was necessarily executed and delivered 
on said date.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which so executed shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts 
shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
 Use of Words and Phrases: The following words and phrases, where 
used in this document, shall be given the following and respective interpretations.  
"Herein," "hereby," "hereunder," and other equivalent words refer to this 
document as an entirety and not solely to the particular portion hereof in which 
any such word is used. 
 
 The definitions set forth in any portion of this Agreement unless the text or 
context indicates differently shall be deemed applicable whether the words 
defined are herein used in the singular or the plural.  Wherever used herein any 
pronoun or pronouns shall be deemed to include both singular and plural and to 
cover all genders. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 
Agreement as of the day and date first set fort above. 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
________________________  
David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

BARC 
     BY:_______________________________ 
     TITLE:_____________________________ 
 
     Federal Tax ID#:_____________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
____________________________ 
By:_________________________ 
 

177



ORDINANCE 2012-16  
 

U.S. 98 & WHISPERING PINES INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS (TURN 

LANES & SIGNALIZATION) 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has entered into an agreement with ALDOT to reimburse 50% 
for the intersection improvements ($322,368.08) at U.S. 98 & Whispering Pines Road 
with the City being responsible for 100% of the additive alternate for W.P. US Hwy 
98 to Main Street ($32.395.96), 50% of Signalization cost payable to ALDOT(up to 

$60,000);  and engineering costs ($48,000); and 
 
WHEREAS,  the U.S. 98 & Whispering Pines Road Intersection Improvements for 
Turn Lanes & Signalization is needed for enhanced traffic flow; and 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $785,132. from the General Fund are 
appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve made a part of the Fiscal Year 
2012 budget for  U.S. 98 & Whispering Pines Road Intersection Improvements for 
Turn Lanes & Signalization as follows: 

  $677,132.11 for construction of which ALDOT will reimburse $322,368.08 
(City’s portion - $354,764.04 (322,368+32,395.96)  ; and 

 $60,000 for signalization Upgrade & Replacement to be paid to ALDOT 
(separate agreement); and 

 $48,000 for Engineering; and 
 the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any documents required in order 

for the City of Daphne to participate in such intersection project. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
        
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

178



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2012-17 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 2007-10 IN ITS ENTIRETY 

AND TO PROMOTE MANDATORY SEWER CONNECTION 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration, 

believes that new City regulations concerning mandatory sewer connection are necessary; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, said regulations will enable the City to more easily benefit the 

health, safety, and welfare of its citizens by mandating connection to sewer services;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  CONNECTION TO SEWER REQUIRED 

 

A. It shall be unlawful and an offense against the City for any person or entity  

to construct or maintain within the City any dwelling, building, or other place where 

human beings reside, are employed, congregate, rent, lease, use or permit to be used for 

such purposes which is not provided with facilities for disposal of the bodily discharges 

connected to a sanitary sewer line in the City. 

   

B. All private or public premises within the City of Daphne shall be required  

to connect to the City sewer system and/or any utility providing sewer service with 

permission from the City within six (6) months after the City sewer system and/or any 

utility providing sewer service with permission from the City is made available. 

 

C. It shall be a violation of this ordinance for any person or entity to fail  

or refuse to connect to the City sewer system and/or any utility providing sewer service 

with permission from the City. 

 

 D. For purposes of this section, sanitary sewer service shall be deemed 

available to any lot or parcel of land when a sanitary sewer line crosses or abuts upon any 

such lot or parcel or when a sanitary sewer line is laid in any public street, alley, or other  

179



 

public way at a point where any such lot or parcel of land abuts upon any such public 

street, alley, or other public way. 

 

SECTION II:  REGULATION OF SEPTIC TANKS 

 

 A. Regulation of Septic Tanks: The Board of Health of Baldwin County or its 

duly authorized representatives being specifically empowered and directed by state law, 

are hereby empowered and directed by the City to making such inspections and 

investigations of and to take such legal steps as may be necessary to regulate and control 

the type, construction, reconstruction, location, use and maintenance of all septic tanks 

and all appurtenances thereto or used in connection therewith in the City. 

 

B. Inspection of Septic Tanks:  All septic tanks within the City shall be 

subject to inspection or investigation by the Board of Health or its duly authorized 

representative(s) at all reasonable times and the Board of Health or its representative(s) 

shall have the right to enter upon or into all property, premises or building for such 

purposes. 

 

C. Permit for Construction and Maintenance of Septic Tank: It shall be  

unlawful and an offense against the City for any person to construct a septic tank on any 

property within the City without first having obtained a permit from their County Board 

of Health or its duly authorized representative.  

 

D. It shall be unlawful and an offense against the City for any person to 

empty raw sewage into any septic tank or by any other means or method to privately 

dispose of such raw sewage after the time prescribed in Section I hereof. 

 

SECTION III:  PENALTIES 
 

 A violation of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be punishable by a fine of not 

less than $10.00 nor more than $100.00 per day of violation. Each day of non-compliance 

following the 15
th

 day after notice shall be considered a separate offense. 

 

 SECTION IV: REPEALER  

 

  That Ordinance 2007-10 is hereby repealed in its entirety and further that any 

Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, 

which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

  

SECTION V: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 

180



for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION VI: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

         This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                                                    

 

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, Jr.  

MAYOR                                        
            

    

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

181


	AGENDA.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - February 6.pdf
	Council Work Session Mintues - February 13.pdf
	Backup to Council Work Session Minutes.pdf
	Backup to Work Session Minutes.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes.pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Public Works Minuters.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Parade Permit.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	R2012-06 - RES - Appoint Enoch Toler to Special Care Facilities Financing Authority.pdf
	Backup to 2012-06 - RES.pdf
	R2012-07 - RES - Oil-Lubricants.pdf
	R2012-08 - RES - US98-Whispering Pines Intersection Imprvmnts-Turn Lanes-Signalization-2012.pdf
	R2012-09 - RES - DisasterDebrisRemoval.pdf
	R2012-10 - RES - LIST-GOVDEALS COM               .pdf
	R2012-11 - RES - Safe Routes to School Resolution for Sidewalk 2012.pdf
	R2012-12 - RES - Series 2012 Resolution - Approving Warrant Purchase Agreement (2 1 2012).pdf
	R2012-13 -RES -  May Day Park Grant 2012.pdf
	R2012-14 - RES - Bay Front Park Amphitheater Plan Grant 2012.pdf
	2012-01 - ORD - Transitional Duty - WCOrdinance6 1.pdf
	2012-06 - ORD - Non-profitFunding2 1.pdf
	2012-07 - ORD - SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS - 2012 - Option A - Health & Cola.pdf
	2012-08 - ORD - SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS - 2012 - Option B - Health.pdf
	2012-09 - ORD - SALARY FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS - 2012 - Option C - COLA.pdf
	2012-10 - ORD - SALARY FOR MAYOR.pdf
	2012-11 - ORD - Utility (Portable Potty Lease) - 01 30 2012.pdf
	2012-12 - ORD - Building Maintenance Other Personnel Cost.pdf
	2012-13 - ORD - Auditing Services-CPA.pdf
	2012-14 - ORD - Bonding - Finance.pdf
	2012-15 - ORD - BARC-Animal    - Community Contribution.pdf
	2012-16 - ORD - US 98  Whispering Pines Intersection Improvements-Turn Lanes-Signalization.pdf
	2012-17 - ORD - SewerWaiverAmendOrdinance3 1.pdf



